SENATE FI NANCE COWM TTEE
March 30, 2016
1:34 p.m

1: 34: 13 PM

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair MacKinnon called the Senate Finance Committee
nmeeting to order at 1:34 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Anna MacKi nnon, Co- Chair
Senat or Pete Kelly, Co-Chair
Senator Peter M cciche, Vice-Chair
Senator dick Bishop

Senat or M ke Dunl eavy

Senat or Lyman Hof f man

Senat or Donny d son

VEMBERS ABSENT

None

ALSO PRESENT

Jordan Shilling, Staff, Senator John Coghill; Nancy Meade
Director, General Council, Al aska Court System Quinlan
Steiner, Public Defender, Departnment of Admnistration;
Dean WIlians, Comm ssioner, Departnent of Corrections;
John Skidnore Director, Crimnal Division, Departnent of
Law.

PRESENT VI A TELECONFERENCE

Jeff Edwards, Executive Director, Parole Board, Anchorage.

SUVWARY

SB 91 OWNI BUS CRI M LAW and PROCEDURE; CORRECTI ONS
SB 91 was HEARD and HELD in committee for further
consi derati on.

#sb91l

SENATE BILL NO. 91




"An Act relating to protective orders; relating to
conditions of release; relating to comunity work
service;, relating to credit toward a sentence of
inmprisonment for certain persons under electronic
monitoring; relating to the restoration under certain
circunstances of an admnistratively revoked driver's
license, privilege to drive, or privilege to obtain a
license; allowwng a reduction of penalties for
of f enders successfully conpl eti ng court-ordered
treatment progranms for persons convicted of driving
under the influence; relating to termnation of a
revocation of a driver's |license; relating to
restoration of a driver's license; relating to credits
toward a sentence of inprisonment, to good tinme
deductions, and to providing for earned good tine
deduct i ons for prisoners; relating to t he
disqualification of persons <convicted of certain
felony drug offenses from participation in the food
stanp and tenporary assistance progranms; relating to
probation; relating to mtigating factors; relating to
treatment prograns for prisoners; relating to the
duties of the comm ssioner of corrections; anmending
Rules 32 and 35(hb), Al aska Rules of Crim nal
Procedure; and providing for an effective date."

1:36: 55 PM

JORDAN SHI LLI NG STAFF, SENATOR JOHN COGHI LL, discussed the
presentati on, "SB 91 ACIC Pretrial and  Sentencing
Recommendati ons Sponsor: Senator John Coghill 3-30-2016"

(copy on file).

M. Shilling displayed slide 1, "Pretrial Recommendations.™
He stated that the commssion found that the pretrial
popul ati on was the fastest growi ng prison population in the
state. He explained the reasons behind the increase in the
pretrial prison popul ation.

M. Shilling | ooked at slide 2, "Pretrial Reconmendations”

1. Expand the use of citations in place of arrest for
| ower -1 evel nonviol ent of fenses

2. Utilize risk-based deci si on-nmaki ng

3. Inplenent pretrial supervision

4. Focus supervision resources on high-risk defendants

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 2 03/30/16 1:34 P. M



M. Shilling addressed slide 3, "Cite vs. Arrest":
The Comm ssion recommended expanding the wuse of
citations in place of arrest for lower |evel non-
vi ol ent of f enses.

76 percent of pretrial adm ssions to prison are
for m sdenmeanor charges.

56 percent of pretrial adm ssions to prison are
for non-violent m sdeneanor charges.

1: 40: 41 PM

Senator Bishop queried the training of the officers. M.
Shilling replied that he assunmed that the departnents and
vari ous agenci es would educate the officers.

Senator Bishop stressed that there nust be an execution of
the law. M. Shilling replied that it was inportant for |aw
enforcenent to conply with statute.

M. Shilling discussed slide 4, "Pretrial Reconmendations”

1. Expand the use of citations in place of arrest for
| ower -1 evel nonviol ent of fenses

2. Uilize risk-based deci sion-nmaking

3. Inplenent pretrial supervision

4. Focus supervision resources on high-risk defendants

M. Shilling highlighted slide 5, "Gowh in Pretrial
Popul ation Linked to Large Nunber of Nonviolent O fenders
Held Pretrial, Longer Stays Behind Bars":

Pretrial population up 81 percent in |ast decade
Hal f of pretrial defendants are detained on nonviol ent
charges, including m sdeneanors

Def endants staying | onger pretrial than they used to

M. Shilling addressed slide 6, "Research Shows: Detention
Shoul d be Linked to Risk, Limted for Low R sk Defendants":

Pretrial risk assessnment can help predict |ikelihood

of pretrial failure (far better than a defendant’s
ability to pay bail); and

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 3 03/30/16 1:34 P. M



Pretri al detention <can Jlead to worse outcones,
particularly for |lowrisk defendants.

Senat or Hof f man wonder ed whet her those awaiting pretrial be
able to have the assessnment. M. Shilling replied that,
after the defendant was arrested, they were brought to a
Department of Corrections (DOC) facility.

Senat or Hof fman pointed his question to those currently in
facilities. M. Shilling replied that the provision was not
retroactive. He explained that the effective date was 18
months in the future.

M. Shilling continued to discuss Kentucky's experience
wi th the provision.

1: 46: 46 PM

M. Shilling discussed slide 7, "Pretrial Recommendations”:

1. Expand the use of citations in place of arrest for
| ower -1 evel nonviol ent offenses

2. Uilize risk-based decision-naking

3. Inplenent pretrial supervision

4. Focus supervision resources on high-risk defendants

M. Shilling highlighted slide 8, "Inplenent Pretrial
Supervi sion":

M ni mal supervision with court date rem nders

Basic supervision (in-office appointnents, phone
calls, field visits)

Enhanced supervision (higher frequency contacts, drug
and al cohol testing, electronic nonitoring)

Research shows that enhanced supervision should be
focused on those who are nost likely to fail pretrial.

Senator Hoffrman queried the pretrial inplenentation in a
village, such as Aniak. M. Shilling replied that the new
| evel of enhanced public safety and supervision would not
be available for all parts of the state. He did not know
the location of the supervision, and deferred to
Comm ssioner Wllians for nore information regarding
i npl ement ati on.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 4 03/30/16 1:34 P. M



M. Shilling | ooked at slide 10, " Sent enci ng
Reconmendat i ons™:

5. Limt the use of prison for |ower-|evel m sdeneanor
of f enders

6. Revise drug penalties to focus the nobst the severe
puni shments on hi gher-1level drug offenders

7. Wilize inflation-adjusted property threshol ds

Align non-sex felony presunptive ranges wth prior
presunptive terns

8. Expand and streamline the wuse of discretionary
parol e

9. Inplenment a specialty parole option for long-term
geriatric inmates

10. Incentivize conpletion of treatnent for sex
of fenders with an earned tinme policy

M. Shilling discussed slide 11, "Vast Mpjority of

Admi ssions to Prison Are M sdeneanants." He stated that
nmost of the m sdemeanors were |low |evel, nonvi ol ent
m sdeneanors. The commi ssion recomended changes in

m sdeneanor sentencing in order to "stem the |arge nunber
of low level offenders who occupied the expensive limted
nunber of beds. The conm ssion reconmended reducing sone
low | evel Class B misdeneanors to the level of violation.
He shared that Senator Coghill had deviated slightly from
that recommendation upon introducing the bill. He shared
that, of the approximately 80 C ass B m sdeneanors, SB 91
only reduced approximately 5 of those Class B m sdeneanors
to violations. Those reductions were considered nore
"benign® Class B m sdeneanors. He shared that t he
commi ssion reconmmended changing addressing the crine of
driving with a suspended license to differentiate from
those who were driving with a suspended |icense with an
under |l ying revocation froma DUl

1: 52: 09 PM

Co- Chair MacKinnon wondered how the nmandate would be
initiated and nonitoring statew de. She furthered queried
the technology to support inplenentation of a mnmandatory
requirenent. M. Shilling replied that the comi ssion
recommended that the individual would serve their term of
i nprisonnment at hone, under the supervision of a probation
officer, if the electronic nonitoring was unavail able. He

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 5 03/30/16 1:34 P. M



furthered that the person would serve tine under house
arrest, should a probation officer be unavail abl e.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon asked whether a third party custodian
woul d be responsible for nonitoring the person in their
hore. M. Shilling responded that the bill did not
elimnate third party custodi anshi p.

Senator Bishop wondered if a village public safety officer
(VPSO could act as a probation officer. M. Shilling
agreed to provide that information.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon requested options about the types of
of ficers who could serve as third party custodi ans.

M. Shilling addr essed slide 12, " Sent enci ng
Recomendat i ons":

5. Limt the use of prison for |ower-|evel m sdeneanor
of fenders

6. Revise drug penalties to focus the nost the severe
puni shments on hi gher-1level drug offenders

7. Uilize inflation-adjusted property threshol ds

Align non-sex felony presunptive ranges wth prior
presunptive terns

8. Expand and streamline the wuse of discretionary
parol e

9. Inplenment a specialty parole option for long-term
geriatric inmates

10. Incentivize conpletion of treatnent for sex
of fenders with an earned tinme policy

M. Shilling highlighted slide 13, "Over Last Decade, Mre
O fenders Entering Prison for Drug Crinmes, and Staying
Longer":

Over past 10 years-—
adm ssions to prison for felony drug offenses has
grown by 35 percent, driven in large part by a 68
percent increase in admissions for MCS 4
of fenders; and

l ength of stay for Alaska s felony drug offenders
has i ncreased by 16 percent.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 6 03/30/16 1:34 P. M



M. Shilling addressed slide 14, "Research Shows: Long
Prison Sentences for Drug Ofenders Have Low Deterrent
Val ue":

There is no significant effect of |onger prison stays
on recidivism rates (i.e. staying in prison |onger
does not nmke an offender less likely to recommt a
crine).

In addition, sone studies find that severe punishnents
such as felony convictions and prison terns may have
crimnogenic effects, causing offenders to be nore
likely to commit crines in the future.

1: 57: 58 PM

Senator Bishop surmsed that the report stated that one in
15,000 drug deals were made before an arrest was made. M.
Shill'ing agreed.

M. Shilling hi ghl i ght ed slide 15, " Sent enci ng
Reconmendat i ons™:

5. Limt the use of prison for |ower-Ilevel m sdeneanor
of f enders

6. Revise drug penalties to focus the npbst the severe
puni shments on hi gher-1|evel drug of fenders

7. Wilize inflation-adjusted property threshol ds

Align non-sex felony presunptive ranges wth prior
presunptive terns

8. Expand and streamine the wuse of discretionary
parol e

9. Inplenment a specialty parole option for long-term
geriatric inmates

10. I ncentivize conpletion of treatnent for sex
of fenders with an earned tinme policy

M. Shilling discussed slide 16, "Felony Theft Threshold in
Al aska Has Not Kept Pace with Inflation."

M. Shilling addressed slide 17, "Research Shows: Raising
the Fel ony Theft Threshold Has No | npact on Crine":

Bet ween 2001 and 2011, 23 states raised their felony
theft thresholds. In these 23 states, the change in
threshold had no inpact, up or down, in the state's
overal |l property crime rate.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 7 03/30/16 1:34 P. M



In fact, property and larceny <crine rates fel
slightly nore in the 23 states that raised their
thresholds from 2001 to 2011 than the 27 states that
di d not.

Senat or Dunl eavy wondered whether there was a consideration
regarding the financial hardship as a result the absence of
an item M . Shilling replied that the issue was
considering when addressing the paying of restitution. He
stated that the ~consideration was not addressed in
sent enci ng.

2:02: 16 PM

Senat or Hof fman supported the escalators, in order to avoid
a larger factor. He felt that the stolen item was the sane
product, with a vast difference in dollars. He remarked
that there may be an added value of |larger products in
rural Alaska that would put people over the threshold,
because of the high cost of living. M. Shilling replied
that there was a disparity in how the law was applied,
based on where you live.

Co- Chair MacKinnon urged the court to consider the cost
differential.

Senator Hoffrman wanted something other than a rura
exenpti on.

Co- Chair MacKinnon queried the commttee that renoved the
link to the consunmer price index (CPlI) M. Shilling replied
that it was the State Affairs Conmttee. He renmarked that
the increase for vehicle theft was renoved, so it renained
at $750. He shared that the threshold for fraudul ent use of
an access device was lowered to $50 as the dividing line
bet ween a fel ony and a m sdeneanor.

Senator Hoffman queried the commttee's justification for
the changes. M. Shilling replied that he was not privy to
many of the policy discussions when developing the
amendnent s. He stated that there was sone history
surrounding the threshold for fraudulent use of an access
devi ce.

Senator Bi shop wondered if there was an elimnation of the
CPl. M. Shilling replied that in order to inplenent the

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 8 03/30/16 1:34 P. M



five year adjustnment of the CPlI, the bill "piggy backed" on
exi sting l|anguage in the mnimum wage statute. That statute
relied on the Departnent of Labor and Workforce Devel opnent
(DOLWF) cal cul ation of the CPI

2:07: 06 PM

Senator (O son queried the commssion's position on those
changes. M. Shilling replied that the conmm ssion
unani nously reconmmended that the property crine threshold
be rai sed to $2000 and |inked to inflation.

Senator O son queried the conmission's position on the
change in the access device. M. Shilling replied that they
recomrended t hat

M. Shilling hi ghl i ght ed slide 18, " Sent enci ng
Recomrendat i ons":

5. Limt the use of prison for |ower-Ilevel m sdeneanor
of f enders

6. Revise drug penalties to focus the nost the severe
puni shrent s on hi gher-1|evel drug of fenders

7. Uilize inflation-adjusted property threshol ds

8. Align non-sex felony presunptive ranges with prior
presunptive terns

9. Expand and streamline the wuse of discretionary
parol e

10. Inplenent a specialty parole option for long-term
geriatric inmates

11. | ncentivize conpletion of treatnent for sex
of fenders with an earned tinme policy

M. Shilling |ooked at slide 19, "In 2005, Al aska Mved
From Presunptive Ternms to Presunptive Ranges.” He stated
that the legislature had raised sentences in 2005 in
response to a US Suprenme Court case: Bl akel ey v.

Washi ngton. Follow ng that case, states were required to do
sentencing differently. He stated that Al aska noved from a
presunptive term system to a presunptive range system He
noted that, in developing the ranges, the legislature used
the forner termas the bottom of the new range. He remarked
that there was sone intent |anguage in that bill. He noted
that it was the expressed intent of the legislature that
there not be an overall increase in the anount of active
i nprisonnment tine. He stressed that using the former term

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 9 03/30/16 1:34 P. M



as the bottom allowed for only upward novenent in |ength of
sent ences.

M. Shilling discussed slide 20, "Change in Felony
Sentencing Led to Increases in Length of Stay Behind Bars":

From 2004 to 2014, average length of stay for:
Class A felonies grew 80 percent;

Class B felonies grew 8 percent; and

Class C felonies grew 17 percent

M. Shilling highlighted slide 21, "Align Ranges with Prior
Ternms." The conm ssion recomended a wi der range to include
a shorter length of stay than the presunptive term

M. Shilling stated that there were six reconmendations
that did not receive unani nous support.

Senator Bishop stressed that there should be training and
rehabilitation to reduce recidivism M. Shilling replied
that the justice reinvestnment initiative was focused on
t hat i ssue.

Senator Bishop renmarked that the efforts to alter the
current systemwas an attenpt to reduce recidivism

2:13: 01 PM

M. Shilling di scussed slide 22, " Sent enci ng
Reconmendat i ons™:

5. Limt the use of prison for |ower-Ilevel m sdeneanor
of f enders

6. Revise drug penalties to focus the nost the severe
puni shments on hi gher-1|evel drug of fenders

7. Uilize inflation-adjusted property threshol ds

8. Align non-sex felony presunptive ranges with prior
presunptive terns

9. Expand and streamline the wuse of discretionary
par ol e

10. Inplenent a specialty parole option for |ong-term
geriatric inmates

11. I ncentivize conpletion of treatnent for sex
of fenders with an earned tinme policy

M. Shilling highlighted slide 23, "Parole Eligibility
Applied Inconsistently.” He stated that eligibility for

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 10 03/30/16 1:34 P. M



di scretionary parole was restricted to the nbst serious
crinmes: unclassified felonies. He stated that unclassified
felonies included crinmes such as nurder. The discretionary
parole also included the lowest |evel felonies: first and
second time class C felonies; and first tinme class B
fel oni es. He stated that the commssion recomended
expanding eligibility to those individuals; and expandi ng
eligibility to sex offenders, except for repeat class A and
uncl assified sex offenders. He stated that the conm ssion
determ ned that reducing ass sex offender sentencing shoul d
not be included in the recomendation. The conmm ssion
recoomended an exam nation of sex offenders on a nore
i ndi vi dual i zed case by case basis.

M. Shilling addressed slide 24, "For Those Wwo are
Eligible, Parole Underutilized":

On any given nonth in 2014, an average of 463 inmates
were eligible for discretionary parole, and an average
of only 15 parole hearings were held.

Anecdotal reports point to long waits for parole
hearings and archaic and confusing application
procedures as reasons why offenders choose not to
apply for parole.

Co- Chair MacKinnon wondered if there were only fifteen
applications for the fifteen hearings held. M. Shilling
replied in the affirmative.

2:15: 49 PM

Co- Chair MacKi nnon queried who received the parole
application; and how the applications were available to the
i nmat es.

JEFF EDWARDS, EXECUTIVE DI RECTOR, PAROLE BQARD, ANCHORAGE
(via teleconference), replied that once an inmate becane
eligible, there was a |list generated by the institutional
staff. The |ist was then posted throughout the institution.
There was a deadline for the inmates who wi shed to apply
for discretionary parole to fill out the application.

Co-Chair MacKinnon wondered if institutional of ficers
denied inconplete packages. M. Edwards replied in the
negative. He explained that the packet would be returned

if it was found that they are inconplete.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 11 03/30/16 1:34 P. M



Co- Chair MacKi nnon queried the nunmber of inmates who did
not have a GED, had trouble reading, or had dyslexia. M.
Edwards did not know the answer to the question. He
expl ai ned that there was an outsourcing technical
assistance to specifically address the application process.
He stated that the previous application would be difficult
for soneone with a fifth grade education. There was a
recent alteration to the application to make it Iless
conplex with fairly sinple questions. He agreed to provide
a copy of the application to the commttee.

Senat or Dunl eavy gueri ed t he di fference bet ween
di scretionary and admnistrative parole. M. Edwar ds
replied that the basis of admnistrative parole deens a
certain class of inmate who net the specific requirenents
to be automatically released wthout a hearing. He
expl ained that discretionary parole addressed a separate
class of inmate that would, if eligible, appear before the
board for a hearing. He stressed that a hearing nust be
heard for admnistrative parole, should the victim of a
crime request a hearing.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon asserted that one in five people have
dyslexia, or a related issue. M. Shilling did not know if
t hat was true.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon wondered if the current system would
change to allow for everyone to qualify for parole. M.
Shilling replied in the affirmative. He stated that once a
person becane eligible for parole, they were granted a
heari ng.

M. Shilling continued to discuss slide 24. He addressed
the issue of adm nistrative parole.

2:21: 44 PM
Senat or Dunl eavy queried exanples of individuals on
adm nistrative parole. M. Shilling replied that sone class

C, such as theft under $750 or some drug cases, would be
al l owed adm nistrative parole. He furthered that there were
some violent crines, such as assault, were class B and
class C felonies. He stated that crimnally negligent
hom cide was a class B felony. He shared that the sponsor
was open to meking adjustnents to that policy.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 12 03/30/16 1:34 P. M



2:22:45 PM

M . Shilling di scussed slide 25, " Sent enci ng
Recomrendat i ons":

5. Limt the use of prison for |ower-Ilevel m sdeneanor
of f enders

6. Revise drug penalties to focus the nost the severe
puni shments on hi gher-1|evel drug offenders

7. Uilize inflation-adjusted property threshol ds

8. Align non-sex felony presunptive ranges with prior
presunptive termns

9. Expand and streamine the wuse of discretionary
parol e

10. Inplenent a specialty parole option for |ong-term
geriatric inmates

11. | ncentivize conpletion of treatnent for sex
of fenders with an earned tine policy

M. Shilling highlighted slide 26, "Population of d dest
O fenders Has Mre than Doubled in Past 10 Years." He
stressed that the geriatric prison population had nore than
doubled in the last ten years. He stated that it was due to
the significant increase in sentences in recent years.

M. Shilling |ooked at slide 27, "Alaska' s O dest Ofenders
Least Likely to Recidivate Upon Release.” He renarked that
the geriatric offenders were the |east likely to
recidivate. He stated that there was no special option for
parole for this cohort of offenders in Al aska. He stressed
t hat geriatric offenders were the |east likely to
recidivate. He added that geriatric inmates cost two to
three tines nore to incarcerate than other inmates. The
comm ssion recommended a parole option, specifically for
geriatric inmates. They recommended an option for a parole
hearing, if an inmate was between the ages of 55 and 60,
and served ten years of their sentence. The recomrendation
was changed in the state affairs commttee to exclude
uncl assified felons and sex offenders. He remarked that it
was currently likely that the policy would have no inpact,
because those were the only types of offenders who served
| ong sent ences.

Co- Chair MacKinnon noted that everyone in the conmttee
woul d be considered "geriatric."

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 13 03/30/16 1:34 P. M



M. Shilling noted that the State Affairs Conmttee
adj usted the geriatric age from55 to 60.

M . Shilling addr essed slide 28, " Sent enci ng
Recomendat i ons":

5. Limt the use of prison for |ower-|evel m sdeneanor
of f enders

6. Revise drug penalties to focus the nobst the severe
puni shments on hi gher-1level drug offenders

7. Uilize inflation-adjusted property threshol ds

8. Align non-sex felony presunptive ranges with prior
presunptive terns

9. Expand and streamline the wuse of discretionary
parol e

10. Inplenent a specialty parole option for long-term
geriatric inmates

11. Incentivize conpletion of treatnent for sex
of fenders with an earned tinme policy

M. Shilling highlighted slide 30, "Sex O fender Treatnent
Proven to Work, But Underfunded in Al aska":

A cost-benefit analysis conpiling all credible
eval uations of sex offender treatnment found that in-
prison treatnent had a cost-benefit ratio of $1.87
(i.e. for every $1 spent on treatnent, there is a
$1.87 dollar benefit returned to the state and state
residents).

However, in Alaska, the need for in-prison sex
of f ender t r eat ment far outstrips t he suppl y.
Currently, the waitlist for treatnent is at |east four
years | ong.

M. Shilling discussed slide 29, "Sex Ofenders Staying 86
Percent Longer Behind Bars Over Past 10 Years." He stressed
that sex offenders were spending nmuch |longer in prison than
in the past.

2:27:31 PM

Senator Bishop assunmed that the report showed alnobst a
dollar for dollar return on investnent. M. Shilling
agr eed.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 14 03/30/16 1:34 P. M



Co- Chair MacKinnon shared that she had a specific view
based on her experience as an executive director of a rape
crisis center. She remarked that in any given evening there
could be as many as four people victimzed at one tinme. She
stressed the inportance of evaluating the recomendati on.
She remarked that objectivity was sonetinmes |ost when
per sonal opinion or past experiences affect policy
exam nation. She remarked that there were many different
ways to exam ne "reof fendi ng."

Senator Dunl eavy wondered if the discussion was related to
t he sex offender.

Co-Chair MacKinnon replied that the consideration of the
i nvest ment return shoul d be wei ghed agai nst t he
recomrendati ons of victim advocacy agencies in order to
under stand the research

Senator Dunleavy felt that there could be a situation with
two teenagers only three years apart who were engaged in a
mutual relationship. He stressed that the situation was
much different than a geriatric person and a child.

2:32:37 PM

Co-Chair MacKi nnon shar ed t hat she had a simlar
conversation as related to consensual sex, such as
statutory rape. She stated that it was a difficult issue

for victim advocacy groups. She renmarked that she
understood the gravity of assigning a person as "sex
offender" for their entire Ilife. She wondered if the

statute was a three year differential, once over the age of
18. M. Shilling replied that he did not know.

Co-Chair MacKinnon noted that an audience nenber was
indicating in the affirmtive.

Senator Dunleavy stressed that an expert in the field may
hel p the comm ttee understand the issue.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon shared that there would be some victins'
rights agencies available to provide information.

M. Shilling shared that there were many advocates
avai |l abl e for nore information.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 15 03/30/16 1:34 P. M



Senator Bishop felt that his question may not be answered.
He wondered if alcohol addiction was the same as sexual
addi cti on.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon had a simlar question.

Senator Dunleavy stressed that he would like to hear
sonmeone that was focused on the science of sex offending.

Co-Chair MacKi nnon shared that she would hear nor e
i nformati on from experts.

2:40:15 PM

NANCY MEADE DI RECTCR, GENERAL COUNCI L, ALASKA COURT
SYSTEM stressed that the Court's position was neutral on
the legislation. She stated that the sentencing provisions
were statutes that the Court sinply provides. She stated
that the pretrial provisions directly inpacted the courts.

2:42:31 PM
AT EASE

2:43: 04 PM
RECONVENED

2:43: 20 PM

Ms. Meade stated that the bail was set by judges based on
recommendati ons, |ooking at the offense and what needed to
occur to maintain public safety. She remarked that there
was a constitutional right to bail. She remarked that the
conm ssion was concerned that nore propel were in jai
before the proof of innocence. She stated that there would
be a risk assessnent on each person that was arrested. She
stated that the court would be provided with information,
in order to have bail set 24 hours before the arrest. She
stated that the bill may undergo a rewite.

Co- Chai r MacKi nnon wondered how and who would adopt a risk
assessnent tool. She wunderstood that there were other
states that wused an assessnent tool at a high rate of
success. Ms. Meade replied that the Departnent of
Corrections (DOC) would use the assessnent tool.

Co-Chair WMacKi nnon surm sed that DOC would select the risk
assessnent .

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 16 03/30/16 1:34 P. M



2:48: 51 PM

Senat or Bishop assuned that there was a matrix that was

"off the shelf", because the report was using data from
other parts of the country. Ms. Meade replied that severa
states already used the pretrial assessnment tool, including

Kentucky. She stated that DOC would decide whether to
adj ust the other state's tools.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon queried suggestions on the significant
changes in bail statutes. She remarked that the court may
not have the flexibility. Ms. Meade replied that the court
did not have a problem with no discretion, rather that it
was a change from the current system She shared that,
currently the court had the discretion to set bail anounts
and condi tions.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon encouraged work with her staff. M.
Meade agreed.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon queried additional comments. M. Meade
replied that the court was ready to inplenent the pretrial
provisions. She stated that there were other provisions
that she woul d speak to at a | ater date.

Co-Chair Kelly asserted that the Court system took
positions on bills.

2:53: 07 PM

QUI NLAN STEl NER, PUBLI C DEFENDER, DEPARTNVENT OF
ADM NI STRATI ON, introduced hinself. He testified in support
of the initiatives in the bill. He stated that he was a
menber of the comm ssion, and shared sone conversations
regardi ng their reconmendati ons.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon wondered how restitution as a reward or
penalty system was discussed. M. Steiner replied that the
di scussion was conducted in terns of the sentencing
statutes. He shared that there was a sentencing statute
that provided for paynent, and child support was the
hi ghest restitution. He shared that jail time was not a
deterrent for theft. He stressed that there was nore
opportunity for rehabilitation when jail tinme was not
applied to a crine.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 17 03/30/16 1:34 P. M



2:58:27 PM

AT EASE

3:02:14 PM

RECONVENED

3:03: 09 PM

DEAN W LLIAM5, COW SSI ONER, DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTI ONS
commented on the pretrial services section of the bill. He
remarked that he had expressed the inportance of the
reinvestnment portion of the bill. He observed that the plan
was a starting place, and he echoed M. Schilling s

coomments. He felt that there was wsdomin the tinmefrane of
the inplenentation nodel. He stressed that, upon passage of
the bill, the wirk wuld immediately begin in the
departnment. He felt that allowing for tinme was essential to
properly inplenent the program

Co- Chair MacKi nnon queried the objectivity of the proposed
risk assessnment. Commissioner WIllians replied that the
risk assessnment had not been designed. He was happy to
examine an "off the shelf tool." He stressed that the
assessnment tools were assunmed to ne non-interviewed, rather
it was about the gathering of the data.

3:07:41 PM

Senat or Hof f mran wondered how the parole section would work,
and wondered if the bill allowed for an inmate to decline
parol e. Comm ssioner WIlians shared that he had never seen
an issue of soneone declining parole, but agreed that it
coul d occur.

Senator Hoffman remarked that sone were not applying for
parol e, because they did not want parole. Conmm ssioner
Wllians replied that there was sonme confusion about
eligibility. He remarked that sone did not apply for
parol e, because they did not want the conditions of parole.
He felt that parole and probation provisions in the bil
would change the workload in DOC. He added that the
additional individuals in parole would require exam nations
of DOC operati ons.

Senator Hoffman felt that the parole provision would save

t he state a consi der abl e anount of dol | ars for
reinvestnment. He queried any contenplation of how those

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 18 03/30/16 1:34 P. M



dollars would be reinvested in the parole departnent.
Comm ssioner WIllians replied that he was working with the
executive director of the comm ssion about how to possibly
expand the opportunities.

3:10: 50 PM

Co- Chair MacKi nnon wondered how the nonitor devi ce
provisions wuld treat Alaskans fairly. She wondered
whet her electronic nonitoring was available in small and
renote comunities. Conmssioner WIllians replied that
there was an issue of the use of the word "may" and "shall"
as to require the electronic nonitoring for first tine
of f enders.

Co-Chair MacKi nnon wondered if there was additional
feedback. M. Edwards replied that he had a high Ievel
overvi ew.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon noted that Legislative Budget and Audit
(LB&A) had conmissioned a report for DOC to exanm ne cost
savi ng nmeasur es and make reconmendat i ons to t he
| egi sl ature. She remarked that there may be an opportunity
to allow sonme flexibility for prison exit for low risk
of fenders. She remarked that there nmay be sone changes t hat
would not allow for that possibility. She stated that it
was asserted that approximately one-third of the popul ation
woul d never reof f end or comm t a crime after
i ncarcerations; one-third would or should be |ocked away,
because they were high-risk to society; and one-third would
require objective criteria to determne the possibility of
rehabilitation. She wondered if that was an accurate
assertion. M. Edwards agreed with those statenments, in an
overal | perspective. He shared that the parole board had
devel oped and adopted a tool to place the inmtes in those
specific thirds. He shared that the board had eval uated
those categories and risks, and remarked that the release
decisions were not "gut instinct", and were rather
extrenely systemati c.

3:17:39 PM

Co- Chair MacKinnon recalled a study that would provide an
objective tool with sonme risk assessnents to allow for the
proper justice for the crine. She wondered whether there
were conversations related to that 1issue. M. Edwards
responded in the affirmative, and felt that the bill would

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 19 03/30/16 1:34 P. M



target those individuals and the automatic granting of
release of those who were low risk, such as first tine
f el ons.

Co-Chair MacKi nnon surmsed that it was believed that the
issue was related to adm nistrative parole.

3:20: 22 PM

JOHN SKIDMORE DI RECTOR, CRIM NAL DI VISION, DEPARTMENT OF
LAW stated that he had served as a prosecutor for 15
years. He stated that he was not a nenber of the Crimna
Justice Conmmi ssion. He thanked the commttee and the bil
sponsor for all of the work. He stated that the Departnent
of Law (DOL) supported the risk assessnent tool. He stated
that DOL supported the shift of the felony theft threshold
to align with inflation. He stated that increasing the
threshold to $2000 could provide the return of property
qui ckly, because m sdeneanor crinmes were solved nore
qui ckly than felonies. He shared that there should be a
correction on page 48 related to the aggravator, and how
the aggravator for a m sdeneanor offense was proven. He
noted that there were two separate burdens of proof: the
jury and the judge.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon wondered if there was anything rel ated
to sentencing and pretrial that was not included in the
bill. M. Skidnore replied that there were always concerns
that the crimnal division, and encouraged the conmittee to
adhere to recommendati ons fromthe comm ssion.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon announced that anmnendnents on the current
bill were due by 5pm on Friday. She discussed the schedul e
for the remai nder of the week.

SB 91 was HEARD and HELD in commttee for further
consi derati on.

#
ADJ OURNVENT
3:32:26 PM

The neeting was adjourned at 3:32 p. m

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 20 03/30/16 1:34 P. M



